
Joint Board of County Commissioners and Board of Education Committee Meeting 
September 9, 2021 

9:00am 
Chowan County Public Safety Center 

305 West Freemason Street 
 

Minutes 
 
A Joint committee consisting of three Chowan County Board of Commissioners and three 
members of the Edenton Chowan Board of Education met on Thursday, September 9, 2021, 
2021 at 9:00 am at the Chowan County Public Safety Center, 305 West Freemason St. Edenton, 
NC 27932.  
 
UAttendees: 

UCounty Commissioners/StaffU    UBoard of Education/Staff 

Chair Bob Kirby     Chairman Gene Jordan 
Commissioner Ron Cummings    Mr. Ricky Browder 
Commissioner Larry McLaughlin   Mr. Paul Clifton  
Mr. Kevin Howard, County Manager   Dr. Michael Sasscer, Supt. 
Susanne Stallings, Board Clerk    Sarah Hare, Board Clerk 

 
Commissioner Chairman Bob Kirby called the Commissioners to order and welcomed all in 
attendance.  
 
Chairman Gene Jordan of the Board of Education called the Board of Education to order and 
welcomed all in attendance. 
 
This meeting was recorded, a copy of the audio recording is in the meeting file labeled 
September 9, 2021. 
 
UHighschool Construction Plan (Singular vs. Phased) 
Superintendent Dr. Michael Sasser thanked the Board for their work on this project to date. He 
called on Rick Ott the Construction Manager for the project.  
 
Mr. Ott provided a PowerPoint presentation regarding options for singular vs. phased 
construction.  The PowerPoint will be inserted below along with remarks for the minutes. 
 



 
 
 
Mr. Ott stated that over the last 6 months working on this project he has been looking at the 
fluctuation in construction materials pricing. He stated that now at the time for submittal of the 
USDA loan he feels that he is prepared to make a recommendation regarding singular vs. phased 
construction of the new high school. He stated he is prepared to recommend single phased 
project. He then reviewed the following slides which explain the process for multi-phase 
construction.  
 



 

 
 
He noted that new construction on the site of the current school during the school months is 
problematic because of the demolition and second phase construction.  
 



 
 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

He then reviewed the single Phase building construction plan. 



 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

He stated that in working on this project he and the Superintendent looked at the space occupied 
by the Boys and Girls Club, and learned of an opportunity to renovate space on the 2P

nd
P floor of 

that building. He stated that the existing classrooms of the Boys and Girls Club were not enough 
and additional portable classrooms would be required however if the 2P

nd
P floor is renovated for 

classrooms that would be adequate to get them through construction. He stated that it is 



estimated that it would cost the County slightly over $1 million to renovate the unfinished 
second floor of that building.  He stated that the proposed renovated space on the second floor 
could be of use to the School or County in the future.  

 

 



 

Mr. Ott noted the red area in this slide is the construction zone and he will work with school staff 
and Town officials to control the traffic flow.  

 

 

 



 

Dr. Sasscer stated that single phase approach allows most activities to continue and be 
operational. He noted that the tennis courts would not be available until the summer of 2024. He 
stated a location to play for the next two years would need to be determined.  

Commissioner McLaughlin asked about the additional space to be used at the Boys and Girls 
Club. 

Dr. Sasscer stated that the Boys and Girls Club will allow the schools to use their first floor 
during the day for classes. He stated their operational schedule could work around this. He stated 
this building gives the school a total of 20-23 classrooms and they need 23-25.  He stated Dr. 
Bagwell has offered two spaces at COA for the additional needed space.  

Commissioner McLaughlin asked how the schools would transition to allow the Boys and Girls 
Club to operate. 

Dr. Sasscer stated that the teachers on the 1P

st
P floor of the school will have the 4P

th
P block set as 

their planning period and they will most likely leave the campus.  He stated that the Boys and 
Girls Club likes the high school on the campus as it will give them more exposure to the high 
school students. He added that for these same reasons COA likes them on the campus and it 
increases the opportunity for dual enrollment.  

Commissioner McLaughlin asked how the students will get to the cafeteria. 

 



Dr. Sasscer stated a plan is being developed to shuttle the students over to the old campus site.  

Commissioner McLaughlin asked if COA’s culinary building is an option. 

Dr. Sasscer stated that the gym is needed during construction so that was not considered.  

Mr. Ott stated he believes a single phased approach will condense the time for construction and 
is the most cost effective.  He stated that the County Manger and he will meet with the Architect 
that performed the renovations to the first floor of DF Walker and his experience may help 
expedite the project. He stated that the renovations would not be a tremendous undertaking 
however an elevator will be needed on the site. He stated this will be an opportunity to build 
some common space and future meeting spaces for the community as well as potential office 
space for the Board of Education to have a presence on the campus.  

Commissioner Kirby asked if the renovation cost is in the current construction budget. 

Mr. Ott stated the renovation is not budgeted.  

Chair Kirby stated he felt that the presentation states that $1.2 million will be saved by going to a 
single phase approach. 

Mr. Ott stated that this is not saving $1.2 million but is offsetting some of the costs and how 
much work will need to be done. 

Dr. Sasscer stated that the $50 million project has some constraints as the schools have had to 
look at how to spend the most of the money on learning space and meets the educational 
programming needs. He stated the monies budgeted for temporary classrooms will not be spent 
on temporary buildings that will no longer be needed after construction.  

Mr. Ott discussed the increase in construction materials over the past year as an additional 
impact to the project cost. 

Mr. Howard stated that there have been some discussions on funding sources for the 2P

nd
P floor 

renovation at Walker.  He stated that the schools have some monies in capital to go towards the 
renovation.  He stated he felt that the County could look into corporate sponsorship for 1/3 of the 
cost. He stated that there are business looking for conference and meeting space. He stated 
specifically Regulator Marine is always looking for space to meet.  

Commissioner Kirby asked if there is a budget for the renovation. 

Mr. Ott stated yes. He stated he spoke with the County’s architect regarding the cost for 
classroom space and future district offices. He stated that the elevator is $400,000.  He stated that 
there would be additional renovations after the students move to the new school to change the 
classroom space to office and conference space.  



 

Dr. Sasscer noted that construction costs are higher now and some of the budgeted contingencies 
may be absorbed from rising costs, many of which are related to COVID.  He stated that a 50% 
share from the County is minimal for the investment. 

Commissioner McLaughlin stated he agreed that the move made sense his concern was that the 
financing has not been considered. 

Mr. Ott stated he is requesting permission to get the info together on design to get hard numbers 
for the cost estimate. He stated this needs to be done in 60 days.  He stated he is asking 
permission to begin working with the architect and then the Board of Commissioners can make 
their final decision.  

Dr. Sasscer stated that Mr. Farkas (the County’s engineer on the 1P

st
P floor project) was able to 

renovate the space for $104 per square foot and he is estimating the cost now to be $118 per 
square foot. He stated he estimates the total cost to the County for their ½ of the project to be 
around $1.5 million. He stated that there are funds available to the schools through lottery 
proceeds. He stated that he requests this be considered by the full Board of Commissioners at 
their September 20P

th
P meeting. 

Commissioner Kirby discussed his concerns regarding the rising costs and the expressed impacts 
of them on the school project. He reminded Mr. Ott that he assured the Board of Commissioners 
he would do the project for $50 million. He noted that the County Capital Improvement Plan 
(CIP) is being prioritized now. He stated that bidding the school project now could be risky if 
prices continue to rise. 

Mr. Howard asked if the school project would be bid out in January if material prices are still 
rising. 

Mr. Ott stated that he is working to amend the construction management and architect contracts 
on the school project and they will go before the Board of Education on the 14th and 
Commissioners on the 20P

th
P.  He stated he would also bring the single phase construction project 

to the Commissioners at their meeting on the 20P

th
P.  

Dr. Sasscer stated in the interim he and the manager will look more into private donations, 
lottery monies and capital monies in the state budget.  He stated there are some viable options to 
pay for the project.  

Board of Education member Gene Jordan stated that this is an opportunity for the County to take 
advantage of available resources. 



Commissioner McLaughlin stated he agreed with the long term vision but noted additional 
County capital needs such as the Courthouse, Jail and a Water project. He noted the middle 
school is also something that will need future consideration.  

Commissioner Kirby stated that this would eventually require a tax increase and he feels that the 
Commissioners may eventually have to say no to a project. He discussed the County’s current 
poverty rate and noted that meals were being delivered to children’s homes during the pandemic. 
He stated that many residents cannot afford a tax increase. 

Dr. Sasscer stated that as a tax payer he supports the long term investment for community civic 
space on the DF Walker campus.  

The Committee discussed the phasing options presented and unanimously consented to the single 
phase approach. 

Mr. Jordan stated that the Board of Education has already supported the single phase approach 
option. 

USignage 

Dr. Sasscer stated that Dr. Bagwell with COA would like to make the campus more uniform with 
the signage. He stated that there will be a proposal to have uniform signage at the campus.  

Commissioner Kirby discussed the final phase of construction and stated that he hoped that 
parking on the front lawn of the high school would be eliminated. 

Dr. Sasscer stated that the future design of the campus will have ample parking. 

Commissioner Kirby stated he would like for Mr. Ott to develop an operational budget for the 
school as he feels going forward the new buildings will cost more to operate. 

Mr. Ott stated he would do that in the future but for now he needs to move quickly on the single 
phase approach. 

Being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 


